

December 6, 1943

Dec. 6,  
1943.

The Council of the Rocanville R.M. No. 151 met in the Municipal Office on Monday, Dec. 6, at 2 P.M.

Present, the Reeve, Deputy Reeve, Councillors Dunsmore Calder, and Petays. Councillor-elect Goodman was also in attendance.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that the minutes of the last meeting be adapted as read. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that Andrew Gray be granted a remission of taxes on E $\frac{1}{2}$  17-17-32-1 in the sum equivalent to 20% on Municipal taxes and 10% on P.R. and Hail taxes, subject to the approval of the Deputy Minister. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that Rocanville R.M. No. 151 accept from J.W.J. Thomson the sum of \$350.00 in trust to be applied on the purchase price of Sw 34-16-31-1, provided that the balance of the purchase price is paid by March 1st, 1944, it being understood and agreed that the purchase price is \$800.00. cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve that the Reeve and Secretary be authorized to sign the Government contract covering the additional grant of \$400.00 on the East Rocanville Road. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that the Secretary be instructed to write the Dept. of ~~Municipal~~ Highways re the East Rocanville Road contract requesting:

- (1) An extension of time in which to complete the road contract, and
- (2) That the Dept arrange for an engineer to inspect the roadwork done to date with the view of providing for a percentage payment of the grant at an early date. cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve that application be made for the title to NE 34-16-30-1. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that, subject to the approval of the Deputy Minister that the sum of \$50.00 be accepted as full payment of the arrears of Taxes on Sw 4-18-31-1, it being understood that this sum of \$50.00 will be paid by R.I. Donaldson. cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays that the appropriation of funds allotted to each Division for roadwork be the same as last year, viz.,-- \$800.00 for each of Divisions 1, 2, and 3; and \$700.00 for each of Divisions 4, 5, and 6. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that Mrs. E.J. Casemore be exempted from payments on account of 1938 Seed Lien for this year. cd.

Moved by ~~the~~ the Deputy Reeve that the balance of the grain of J.F. Herman be released at the elevator for this year. cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays that the 5% penalty be not added to arrears of taxes until April 1st, 1944. cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays that subject to the approval of the Deputy Minister that a remission of taxes be granted to George Thompson on N $\frac{1}{2}$  6-16-32-1 in the sum equivalent to 20% on Municipal Taxes and 10% on P.R. and Hail taxes. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that we adjourn until 7.30. cd.

M  
oved by

Dec. 6/43 .. (2)

Moved by Councillor Calder that the Secreatry be instructed to write to Bm Miller, Moosomin asking that pay the sum of \$10.00 for damage done by him to the brigg located North of the NE 13-16-32-1. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that Relief advances be made to J. Delorme in the sum of \$10.00, and to Amable Belhemeur in the sum of \$30.00, the said advances to be made monthly until their cases are again reviewed. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that ~~#####~~ the Council of R.M. No. 151 grant a partial withdrawal of the registered Lien against SW 21-16-32-1, as may be required by the Trustees of the United Church of Canada in order to obtain title to the Prosperity Church property. cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays that a grant of \$50.00 be made to the Salvation Army. cd.

Moved by The Deputy Reeve that a grant of \$25.00 be made to Sask. Blind Welfare Committee. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the accounts as presented be paid, viz. :

A. Calder ... Supervision .....	\$19.10
Rocanville Farmers' Ltd. ,, Rent ..	105.00
Dept. of Telephones ... Tel. Rent ..	10.00
Secretary's Petty Cash Acct. ....	3.53
S.A.R.M. .... Supplies ....	25.44
The Rocanville Record ..Printing...	23.79
R.J. Murphy .... Tile Comm. Work ...	5.25
E.H. Plummer & Son ..Stain and Varnishing ..	3.00
E.H. Plummer & Son ....Supplies .....	1.63
L. Campbell ... Supervision .....	22.35
G. Dunsmore ... " " " " .....	14.00
Drs Ferg & Chestnut .. Med. Services ..	62.50
G. McGibbon .... Gravel .....	18.00
Municipal Elections:	
Returning Officer .....	35.00
Deputy Returning Officer .....	5.00
Rent for Polling Booth .....	3.00
Proctor & Bayles ... Legal .....	2.00
Jim Cameron ... Draying .....	3.75
Rocanville Coop. Ass'n. ... Lumber...	13.95
D. Hilts ... Delegate expenses ....	12.00

ch# 4629

Moved by the Deputy Reeve that the Financial# statement be received and filed . cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that "We now adjourn to meet Monday, January 3rd." cd.

During the course of the day the Council sat as the WIN/THE-WAR Committee and reviewed all confidential reports received since last meeting.

The Returning Officer summed up the votes allotted to each candidate in the recent Municipal elections in R.M. No. 151, and declared that Joseph Goodman was duly elected as Councillor for Division 2.

*David L. Wilson*  
Reeve

*John Mackay*  
Sec - Treas.

## 1943 Annual Meeting.

Nov. 15  
1943.

The Annual Ratepayers' Meeting of Rocanville R.M. No. 151 met in the Farmers' Building, Rocanville, at 1.00 P.M. on Monday, November 15th, 1943, with 25 ratepayers present.

Reeve Wilson presided with the Deputy Reeve, Councillors Chase, Dunsmore and Petays present. ~~#####~~ Jos. Goodman, appointed to look after the interests of Div. 2 for the balance of the year, was also in attendance.

Moved by G.A. Lindsay and J.E. Christian that the minutes of the last Annual Meeting be adapted as read. cd.

The Reeve reported briefly on the service given by the Municipal Doctor in the Western portion of the Municipality. The report was quite favourable.

Moved by W.W. Goodman and J.B. Chase that the Financial Statement for the first ten months of the year be approved. cd.

A number of the ratepayers discussed the problem of collecting Arrears of Taxes outstanding in the Municipality and some practical suggestions were made.

At 2 P.M. the Returning Officer declared the meeting open for Nominations for Reeve and Councillors for the ensuing year. On the basis of nominations received, the following were declared elected by acclamation:

Reeve .....	D.L. Wilson.
Councillor, Div. 4 .....	Garnet Dunsmore.
Councillor, Div. 6 .....	S.A. Petays.

Nominations for Councillor for Div. 2 were received on behalf of Joseph Goodman and Herbert Watson. Notice of a Poll for Div. 2 was given, the election to take place on Monday, November 15th.

Short addresses were given by the Reeve, Deputy Reeve, and the Councillors and Nominees present.

J.D. Mercer ~~also spoke~~ addressed the meeting and made a number of suggestions.

Following a discussion on the advisability of employing an Assistant to the Secretary-Treasurer it was moved by G.A. Lindsay and J.E. Christian that the matter be left in the hands of the Council. cd.

Moved by W.J. Arnold and J.F. Rushton that the Inspector's report be received and filed. cd.

The Secretary spoke briefly of current problems in the Municipal Office.

An appeal was made for better roads by some of the ratepayers, followed by a discussion as to the best plan to be adapted during the present shortage-of-labour-period.

Moved by G.A. Lindsay that the meeting adjourn. cd.

Nov. I (I)

November I,  
1943

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville No. 151 met in the Municipal Office, Rocanville, at 2 P.M. on Monday, November I, 1943.

Present, The Reeve, the Deputy-Reeve, Councillors Chase, Dunsmore, Calder and Petays.

Moved by Councillor Petays that the minutes of the last meeting be adapted as read. cd.

Moved by the Deputy-Reeve that the first quota of grain of Sylvester Chilton be released at the Elevator and that his Hail claim be held as security in lieu of the grain. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the Municipality issue a cheque to Bert Hall ~~###~~ for \$7.12 in full settlement of his Claim for damages to his car. cd.

The Deputy-Reeve telephoned Moosomin R.M. No. 121 to find out if the use of the Power Grading Outfit could be obtained soon. The Secretary of that Municipality was to advise the Deputy-Reeve following the Council meeting on Sat. 6th.

Rev. R. J. Rainbow interviewed the Council on behalf of the 5th Victory Loan Drive.

Moved by Councillor Calder that R.M. No. 151 purchase a \$100.00 Victory Bond, cd.

The following payments to Schools on account of

Current Levy were authorized:

Carnousti S.D. ....	\$200.00
Woodleigh S.D. ....	175.00
Prosperity S.D. ....	100.00
Oak Knoll S.D. ....	100.00
Rocanville S.D. #22 ....	100.00
Tantallon S.D. ....	100.00
Convent Creek S.D. ....	100.00

Moved by the Deputy-Reeve that an advance of \$100.00 to Cambridge S.D., over and above the Current Levy, be authorized the said advance to be considered as a loan with interest chargeable from date of the advance. cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase that all Private Loans to R.M. bear interest at the rate of 5% after January I, 1944. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that Jos. Goodman be appointed to look after the interests of Division 2 for the balance of this year. cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays that Austin Arnold's load of grain be released upon payment of \$25.00 on account of 1938 Seed Lien. cd.

Nov. I (2)

Moved by the Deputy-Reeve that the balance of the First Quota of A. Sealey be exempted upon payment of \$50.00 on the 1938 Seed Lien. cd.

Moved By Councillor Chase that the balance of the First Quota of R.M. Bonar be exempted after paying \$25.00 on 1938 Seed Lien. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that subject to the approval of the Deputy- Minister that S.R. Harrison be granted a remission of taxes on SE <sup>26-16-32-1</sup> 35-17-33-1 in the sum equivalent to 20% On Municipal Taxes and 10% on ~~mail~~ and P.R. taxes. cd.

J.D. Mercer interviewed the Council on behalf of the Rocanville Village S.D.

Moved by Councillor Calder that R.M. No. 151 re-  
~~###~~ imburse Rocanville Village S.D. to the extent of \$30.00 on account of 1943 Inoculations. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that we adjourn until 7.00 P.M. cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase that the Grian ticket of I.J. Rushton be released upon payment of \$25.00 on 1938 Seed Lien. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that subject to the approval of the Deputy Minister that ~~###~~ the sum of \$250.00 be accepted from C.J. Atkins in full payment of taxes now owing on SE 13-16-30-1. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that subject to the approval of the Deputy Minister that the sum of \$375.00 be accepted from Geo. Daniels as payment in full of Arrears of Taxes on W $\frac{1}{2}$  4-18-32-1, provided that the Current Taxes are also Paid. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that the making of Tiles be dis-continued for this year and that the ~~the~~ rink be cleared of tiles. cd.

The Secretary was instructed to investigate the matter of the application for Title to NE 34-16-30-1.

Moved by the Deputy-Reeve that the Herd Law be extended to the end of the present year. Motion carried, Councillor Petays opposing.

Nov. I (3)

Moved by Councillor Petays that the following  
accounts as presented be passed for payment:

Hugh J. Dauncey ..	Trucking .....	\$54.00
S. Schwanz .....	Supplies .....	64.70
R.J. Murphy .....	Tile COMM. work ....	11.20
Earl Munroe .....	Trucking .....	2.25
B.Y. Fergusson ....	Cement Mixing .....	25.30
S.A. Petays .....	Canvassing .....	9.00
S.A. Petays .....	Supervision ....	13.63
Jos. Goodman .....	Delegate Expenses ...	12.00
F. Hebert .....	Food Order .....	5.00
Nap. Hudon .....	Blacksmithing .....	7.00
Dr. R.C. Merifield	Medical Sercices ....	25.00
Secretary's Petty Cash Acct. ....		10.57
C. Garlick .....	Draying Etc. ....	2.22

Moved by Councillor Chase that the Financial  
Statement be accepted. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that "We now adjourn  
to meet Monday, December 6th". cd.

During the course of the day the Council sat as  
The Win-The/War Committee and reviewed all con-  
fidentaal reports received since the last meeting.

*D. and L. Wilson*  
.....  
Reeve

*D. H. MacLay*  
.....  
Sec. - Treas.

Oct. 4 (I)

October 4th,  
1943.

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville No. 151 met in New Municipal Office, Rocanville, at 2 P.M. Present, the Deputy-Reeve, Councillors Watson, Chase, Dunsmore, ~~and~~ Calder and Petays,

In the absence of the Reeve, the Deputy-Reeve presided.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the minutes of the last regular meeting be adapted as read. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the following adjustment be made re the unpaid bill for inoculations at Hillburn School by Dr. Merifield: that R.M. No. 151 pay 50% of the unpaid bill (25% of the total bill), it being understood that Moosomin R.M. would contribute a similar amount. cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson that the Bert Hall Claim for damages be tabled again till next meeting. cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson that it be announced in the Local Press that anyone wishing to apply for the subsidy on Wood Fuel inquire at the Municipal Office. cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays that the Secretary be instructed to write both Elevator Agents at Tantallon to the effect that it has come to the attention of the Council that there are certain discrepancies in the matter of ~~the~~ handling Elevator Lists; that the evidence is that some Elevator agents are making settlement to Farmers for grain without making the required deductions as set forth in the Elevator Lists; and that if this practice is continued, it is the intention of the Council to proceed in accordance with the provisions of the R.M. Act. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the Deputy-Reeve, Councillor Watson and Councillor Chase be a Committee to investigate Collections at the Local Elevators re Seed Advances and Taxes. cd.

The Council then adjourned for one half hour while this Committee was absent on the appointed task.

Upon the return of the Committee, the Council meeting was resumed.

The Committee reported interviewing all Local Elevator Agents, except the Agent for Parish & Heimbecker. This agent was out of town.

The Committee submitted the following list of names of Farmers: Bert Minty; L Caplette; W. Lindsay; S. Harrison; W. Street; Dalton Strong; and Ed. & H. Karass.

It was contended by one of the other Agents that grain had been delivered to the Parish & Heimbecker Elevator and that Municipal collections had not been made by the Agent.

Moved by ~~C~~ Councillor Dunsmore that the Committee be authorized, after interviewing H.W. Davis, re collections to take action if necessary in reporting the matter to Parish & Heimbecker, Winnipeg. cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase that the Annual Meeting of Rocanville R.M. No. 151 be held on November 15th, at 2 P.M., in the Auditorium of the Farmers' Building, ~~and~~ and that the following officials be appointed:

Returning Officer .... D.F. MacKay.

Deputy-Returning Officers:

Division One... John Swanston .... Ferndale School

Polling Booth

Oct. 4 (2)

Division Two....D. Logan... Farmers' Bldg.,  
Rocanville.

Division Three ...C.C. Hutchinson...SW 24-16-33-1.

Division Four ... F.C. Dunsmore ....Oak Knoll School.

Division Five ... A. Stracey .. Carnousti Hall.

Division Six..... Chas. Knuttila .. Wm Polvi's House.  
cd.

Re Application for Remission of Taxes in favour of A. Kaplun, it was moved by Councillor Calder that the request for a 50% reduction be declined, and that instead he be granted the remission of 20% on Municipal Taxes, and 10% on Hail and P.R. Taxes. cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson that Elton Dixon's offer to pay Current Taxes on SW 17-16-31-1 and W $\frac{1}{2}$  8-16-31-1 in order that his name be struck off from the Elevator Lists for both Seed Advances and Taxes be accepted, provided that the Seed Grain charges in question are legally registered against the land, it being understood that he (Elton Dixon) is to be released for balance of ~~the~~ ~~first~~ ~~quota~~ ~~only~~.  
First quota only). cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase that Rocanville R.M. No. 151 undertake with Sylvester Chilton as follows:

That the name of the said Sylvester Chilton be struck off from the Elevator Lists for Seed Advances and Taxes on condition that he arrange with the Sask. Municipal Hail Insurance Association to pay out of his Claim for Hail damage the sum of Two Hundred and Five Dollars, (205.00), this sum to be paid directly to this Municipality. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the Council adjourn until 7.20 P.M. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the First Three bus. of grain delivered by A. Stracey be released at the Elevator, Bear Creek. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the following Accounts be passed for payment:

H.C. Watson .... Supervision .....	\$41.72
Imperial Bldg. Supplies .....	117.81
B.Y. Fergusson A.. Cement Miving ...	6.75
Farmers' Ltd., Rocanville..... Rent ...	83.00
Jim. Cameron .... Draying.....	2.00
R.J. Murphy .... Tile Committee Work ..	3.85
John Holding ... Blacksmithing ....	8.85
S. Schwanz .... supplies .....	64.45
Village of Rocanville ..Ration Books ..	19.50
Wm Arnold ....Trucking .....	15.00
R.J. Murphy ..Tile Comm. Work for Aug...	37.10
S.A.R.M. .... Supplies .....	18.24
Secretary ... Petty Cash Acct. ....	23.43
L.V. Kelly .... Office Repairs .....	23.00
E.M. Acton .... Supplies .....	6.12
Wm Arnold ... Trucking and Roadwork ..	9.50
F. Hebert ... Food Order .....	5.00
Beaver Lumber Co., Moosomin ..Timbers ..	479.24

cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that the Financial Statement be approved as read. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that John Delorme be struck off the Relief List. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that "We now adjourn to meet Monday, November 1st. cd.

Oct. 4-- (3)

During the ~~course of~~ course of the day the Council sat as the "Win-The/War" Committee and reviewed all confidential reports received since the last meeting.

During the afternoon session an event of marked importance took place:

~~The Council invited Mr. J.D. Mercer to present him-  
self~~

On behalf of the Council and Ratepayers of Rocanville R.M. No.151, the Deputy/Reeve read an address of appreciation to Mr. J.D. Mercer out of recognition for his long period of service as Municipal Secretary in this community, while Councillor Watson presented Mr. Mercer with gifts of a Gladstone Bag and a Pipe Set, as a slight token of the esteem in which our former Municipal Secretary was held following 26 years of efficient and courteous service to the Ratepayers of the Municipality.

David L. Wilson  
.....  
Reeve

J.H. MacKay  
.....  
Sec. - Treas.

August 30th  
1943.

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville No. 151 met in the Municipal office, Rocanville, at 2 P.M.

Present, the Reeve, Deputy-Reeve, Councillors Watson, Chase, Dunsmore, and Petays.

Moved by Councillor Chase that the minutes of the last regular meeting be adapted as read. cd.

Councillor Calder now present.

Moved by Councillor Petays that the offer of G.F. Hogg to pay \$30.00 On account of advances under 1938 Seed Lien be accepted. cd.

The matter of the account re inoculation in Hillburn School be left over till next meeting.

Re the presentation to J.D. Mercer, the Secretary was instructed to purchase a pipe and case to be presented along with the gladstone bag.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the Cutting Edge # shipped in error be returned, and that a cheque be drawn in favour of the Albert Olson Co., in payment of the second Cutting Edge shipped under invoice #R637 of Aug. 24th. cd.

The Secretary was instructed to telephone the Secretary of the Tantallon Rural Telephone Co. to find out why the additional information re the 1943 Levy had not been forwarded to this office.

Moved by Councillor Watson that the Reeve and Secretary be authorized to sign The East Rocanville Road contract with the Government. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that Walter Perry be granted a remission of taxes in the sum equivalent to 20% of Municipal taxes and 10% of P.R. and Hail taxes, provided that the necessary approval be obtained from the Department. cd.

The Secretary was instructed to order an additional supply of Worksheets.

Moved by Councillor Watson that a grant of \$5.00 be made to each of Welwyn Homemakers and Carnousti Homemakers for Cemetery upkeep. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the matter of the Claim for Damages as submitted by Bert Hall be left over till next meeting. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that the following accounts be paid:

Councillor Dunsmore	Supervision	\$15.00
Deputy-Reeve	Supervision	13.40
Jim. Cameron	Gravel	7.50
Earl Munroe	Trucking	9.00
R.E. Windrim	Issuing Ration Books	12.00
The Secretary	Petty Cash Acct.	13.48
F. Hebert	Food Order NO. 10	5.00
R. Shopland	Trucking	3.00
The Rocanville Record	Printing	31.00

August 30th

72-

Moved by Councillor Chase that the Auditor's statement of June 30th be accepted. cd.

Moved by the Deputy-Reeve that the Secretary's financial statement for July be approved. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that "We now adjourn to meet Monday, October 4th." cd.

During the course of the day the Council sat as the "Win-The-War" Committee and reviewed all confidential reports received since last meeting.

..... *L. Campbell* .....  
Depty. Reeve.  
..... *Dr. J. MacKay* .....  
Sec.-Treas.

10/1

Aug. 2,  
1943.

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville No. 151, met in the Municipal office, Rocanville, at 2 PM. Present, the Reeve, Deputy Reeve, Councillors Watson, Chase, Calder, Dunsmore, and Petays.

Moved by Councillor Petays that minutes be approved as read. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that the Secretary make the necessary application with the view of obtaining the subsidy on Wood fuel. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that J. cantin be repayed the balance of his temporary loan. cd.

The East Rocanville Road Committee reported that three miles of the road was completed and that the fourth mile was almost completed.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the report of this Committee be received, and all arrangements made by the Committee as reported at the meeting be approved. cd.

Mr. F. Collyer of Welwyn, interviewed the Council and requested assistance in the matter of obtaining title to certain specified lands, (i.e.-N.E.32-17-30-1, that portion on which is situated the Fort relics) plus a right-of-way leading to Fort Esperance historic relics.

Mr. A. Cameron approached the Council on behalf of Mrs. L. Perreault.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve that Mrs. L. Perreault's grant be increased to \$10.00 per month. cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson that the Secretary be instructed to ~~####~~ undertake to arrange with the Rocanville Farmers Ltd. to rent the room, known as the Bank Building, at a rental of \$35.00 per month, and arrange to proceed with the moving of the office as soon as possible. cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve that the following schedule of payments demanded of Farmers on account of Seed & Grain Advances be adapted: 33 1/3% Of the amount owing, with a minimum of \$50.00. cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays that the Municipality take steps to collect on account of arrears of taxes an ~~###~~ amount equal to ~~###~~ one-and-a-half years' taxes, and that the Secretary prepare Elevator lists setting forth these amounts. cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve that Seed Grain collections take priority over Tax Arrears collections. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that Elim S.D. be advanced \$75.00 on account of Levy. cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays that this Municipality endorse the resolution re flood waters in the Qu'Appelle as passed at a joint meeting of three municipalities held in Whitewood. cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase that Mr. E. Symons be given permission to break the road allowance between Sec. 11-16-33-1 and Sec. 12-16-33-1, and that the said E. Symons be granted the sole right to crop the road allowance referred to above, for an indefinite period. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that we adjourn to meet at 8.30. cd.

~~Moved that the Secretary's report of the Municipal~~

Moved by Councillor Chase that the Secretary's report of the Municipal Secretaries' Convention be received. cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson that the Council as a whole be a Harvest Labour Committee to act in conjunction with Elevator Agents. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that the applications for Maternity grants be endorsed. cd.

Moved by Councillor <sup>Calder</sup> that the Inspector's report be received, and the balance of the correspondence be filed. cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays that the following accounts be paid:

S.A.R.M. --- Supplies ---	57.47
R.E. Windrim -- Bridge Timbers -----	75.00
King's Printer --- Notice to Gazette -----	2.65
E.H. Plummer & Son -- Supplies ----	39.78
J.D. Mercer -- Petty Cash, 1.60	
Bank Overdeposit, 12.24 -----	13.84
Dept. of Telephones .. Rent and Installing ;...	18.50
F. Hebert ----- Food Order -----	8.00
D.F. MacKay.. Petty Cash, 1.53,	
Convention Expenses, 10.21 .....	11.74
C.P.R. Agt. -- C.O.D. ----	48.21
J. Cantin .... On Acct. Loan Repayment ----	300.00
Dr. R.C. Merifield . (Mrs. Perreault) ....	10.00
S. Schwanz ... Supplies ....	89.89
Jim. Cameron ... Gravel Hauling ....	21.00
W.L. Hewgill ... Welding .....	1.75
C. Garlick ..... Draying .....	3.00
Nap Hudon ..... Blacksmithing .....	24.75
R. Murphy ..... Tile Committee work .....	102.55

The Secretary was instructed to telephone The Beaver Lumber Co., Moosomin, and order a specified amount of Bridge timbers, viz.,  
6000 ft. -3/12, 18 and 20 ft. (mixed). and  
2000 ft. -6/6 (or heavier).

Moved by Councillor Chase that the Secretary's statement of Receipts and Deposits ~~and~~ for July be accepted. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that "We now adjourn to meet on Monday, August 30th." cd.

The Council then sat as The WIN/THE-WAR Committee and reviewed all the confidential reports received since the last meeting.

David L. Wilson  
-----  
Reeve.

A. J. MacKay  
-----  
Sec.-Treas.

July 5th,  
1943.

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 met in the Municipal office, Rocanville, at 2 P.M. Present, the Reeve, the Deputy Reeve, Councillors Watson, Chase, Calder, and Petays.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the minutes of the last meeting be approved. cd.

Councillor Dunsmore now present.

The Committee re Jos. Tinnich reported that the road had been investigated and temporary arrangements made.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve that the report be accepted. cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson that the grant from the Dept. of Highways for construction on the road East of Rocanville be accepted on the "Dollar for Dollar basis". cd.

A delegation waited on the Council to present a petition and discuss the advisability of accepting the offer of a \$750.00 grant from the Dept. of Highways.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve that Councillor Watson be one of the Committee to investigate the road and arrange plans to proceed with the work on the road East of Rocanville. cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson that the names of the Deputy Reeve, Councillor Dunsmore, D. Hilts, and T. Reid be added to the Committee. cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson that permission be granted Elton Dixon to remove the house situated on S.W. 17-16-31 W I. cd.  
Mr. Hutchinson of the Dept. of Agriculture was present and discussed with the Council the matter of seed grain collections and Win - the - War Committee work.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve that the Secretary be instructed to write to the Fuel Controller for further information re Procedure to be followed in order to obtain the \$1.00 subsidy on cord wood. cd. ✓

Moved by Councillor Watson that the Secretary apply for additional gasoline coupons for Municipal purposes. cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase that the Secretary be granted two weeks leave of absence as from July 7th. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that a notice be inserted in the local Newspaper to the effect that the Municipal Office will be closed during the absence of the Secretary. cd. ✓

Moved by Councillor Petays that the Secretary be instructed to obtain a supply of the necessary forms and notices to be deposited with Elevator Agents, and that the Secretary send a circular letter ✓

to Elevator Agents concerned, notifying them of the intention of the Municipality to proceed under the provisions of the R.M. Act re collection of Seed Advances and Arrears of Taxes. cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson that the Council adjourn for one hour. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the Secretary be instructed to interview the Farmers Ltd. re moving the Municipal Office to the room known as the "Bank Building", at a rental of \$30.00 per month, plus \$5.00 per month rental for office space by J.D. Mercer. cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore that a payment of \$100.00 be made to The East Rocanville Rural Telephone Co. on account of Levy. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the following accounts be paid:

F.Hebert	-----	Food Order	--	\$8.00
E.H.Plummer & Son	--	Supplies	--	\$2.86
S.Schwanz	-	Acct rendered	---	\$74.41
J.D.Mercer	-	Petty Cash Acct.	--	\$ 4.77
R.J.Murphy	-	Tile Comm. work	--	\$66.50
A.J.Calder	-	Canvass	-----	\$8.00
C.Garlick	-	Dray	-----	\$3.25
J.Cameron	-	Gravel	-----	\$21.00
Imp. Bldg. Supplies Ltd.	----			\$63.89
C.P.Rwy	-	C.).D.	-----	\$33.84
J.M.Gerolamy	-	Box Rent	-----	\$2.50

cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase that the financial statement be adapted as read. cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder that "We now adjourn to meet on Monday, Aug.2nd. cd.

The Council then sat as The Win the War Committee and reviewed all the confidential reports received since the last meeting.

*David L. Wilson*

Reeve.

*W. H. MacKay*

Sec.-Treas.

June 7th. The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151  
1943

met in the municipal office, Rocanville at 2 P.M.

Present, the Reeve, Deputy Reeve, Councillors Watson, Chase, Dunsmore, Calder and Petays.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That the Reeve be authorised to sign bond application re D.F. MacKay as submitted to and approved by the Council.

Councillor Calder Reported " that no action had as yet been taken by the Committee appointed to investigate request of Messrs. Ashe and Kingdon for temporary road improvements.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That we apply to the Department of Highways for a net grant of \$ 1000.00 and request that the Department supply the grading outfit" Cd. ✓

Secretary instructed to write the coal controller for expansion of time in which to earn the subsidy and ask that it include the cutting of dry wood.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That Councillors Calder and Petays be a committee to investigate request of Jos, Tinnich and report at next meeting.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That the Financial Statement for the month ending May 31st. as read be approved" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore " That we borrow a further \$ 5000. 00 for school purposes and that same be apportioned among among the various school districts" Cd. ✓

Moved by Counvillor " That a remission of 20% on all Municipal Taxes and 10% on Public Revenue be allowed on the N.E. 14-16-33, W1, subject to the consent of the Minister of Municipal Affairs." Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase " That a remission of 20% on all municipal taxes and 10 % on Public Revenue be allowed on the West half of 32-16- 32, W1 subject to the consent of the Minister of Municipal Affairs " Cd. ✓

Moved by Councillor Petays " That the Secretary be granted leave of absence from July 1st. till July 12th. and that his necessary expenses be paid for attendance at the Convention of Rural Municipal Secretary Treasurers" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy " That the Council authorise the Secretary Treasurer to Co-operate with the Federal Department of Agriculture in the Wheat Acreage Reduction Program" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore "That we order 5 more maintainer blades from the Sawyer Massey Co. " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we supply the Village of Rocanville with tile needed by it " Cd.

Secretary instructed to reduce Mrs. L. Perreauts relief allowance to \$ 7.50 per month.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we sell the flour stored at the rink for 50 cents per sack " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That the pay the Saskatoon General Hospital \$ 20.00 the balance of account re "rs. Sage" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we <sup>grant</sup> ~~grant~~ the Rocanville Jnr. Calf Club \$ 10.00

Moved by Councillor Petays " That the following accounts be approved and paid " Cd.

S. Schwanz	68.23
F. Hebert	8.00
F. Gent	5.00
Sawyer Massey	29.50
J. Cameron	12.00
R. Murphy	24.50
Nap Hudon	7.50
May Petty cash accounts	5.16

Moved by Councillor Petays " That we now adjourn to meet on Monday July 12th. at 2 P.M.

The Council then sat as the Win the War Committee and reviewed all the confidential reports received since the last meeting

David L Wilson

L.H. MacKay

May 3<sup>rd</sup> 1943

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151  
Met in the Municipal Office, Rocanville at 2 P.M. Present the  
the Reeve, D.L. Wilson, the Deputy Reeve, L. Campbell and  
Councillors Watson, Chase, Dunsmore, Calder and Petays.

Minutes of last regular meeting read and approved on motion  
of the Deputy Reeve.

Secretary's report of his interview with Dr. Keyes and the  
Sec. Treas. of the Silverwood Municipality, relative to  
municipal surgeons contract received on motion of the Deputy  
Reeve.

Minutes of meeting of April 17th. of the Win- the War Committee  
then read.

Moved by the Councillor Calder" That the Reeve be authorised  
to sign the questionnaire relative to the bond of D.F.  
MacKay on behalf of the Council " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That transfer to the N.W.  $\frac{1}{4}$  of  
4-16-31, W1 be executed in favour of D.R. Fergusson, he  
having made final payment on same " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That the list of hail withdrawals  
as listed by the Saskatchewan Municipal Hail Insurance  
Association be approved except as to the following lands  
N.W.3 & S.E.3-17-31, W1, N.W.21-17-32, W1 and the S.E.  
12-17-30, W1" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That J.D. Mercer be the Official  
appointed to obtain the necessary crop reports under the  
Municipal Hail Insurance Act " Cd.

A deputation from the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 152  
waited on the Council with the object of making some  
arrangement relative to cement culverts, this matter was left  
in the hands of the tile committee.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That F. Bellhumeur be interviewed  
with the object of getting him to sign a chattel mortgage on  
cattle for \$ 100.00, as partial security for surgical relief  
paid on his behalf " Cd.

Councillors Calder and Petays were appointed by the Reeve  
as a committee to investigate the request of F. Kingdon and  
I.W. Ashe for temporary road improvements.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That we request the Minister of  
Highways for a bridge North of 23-17-32, W1 across

Scissors Creek " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase " That we now adjourn till 7 o'clock" Cd.

At 7 P.M. the Council reconvened pursuant to adjournment.

Moved by Councillor Petays " That the Municipality purchase a \$500.00 Victory Bond " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase " That the municipality order one set of the 1943 amendments to the revised Statutes of Saskatchewan, 1940" Cd. Moved by Councillor Calder " That ~~his~~ this Council apply to the office of the Coal Controller to have the municipality registered as a fuel dealer and obtain a permit to deal in wood" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase " that the following accounts be approved for payment"

Saskatchewan Assoc. of Rural Municipalities( Bond Premium)	48.00
" " " "(Supplies)	2.04
Rocanville Co-Op. Assoc.	15.96
Albert Olson Co. Ltd.	93.7 2
Harvey Talmay	10.2 0
H.C.Watson( delegate)	25.0 0
Drs. Alport and May	200.00
April Petty Cash Expenses	10.84

The Council then sat as a Win- the War Committee when 19 confidential reports on applications for postponment of military service were considered and all but 2 were recommended.

Moved by Councillor Calder" That we now adjourn to meet on Monday June 7th. at 2 P.M.

*David L Wilson.*  
*D. H. MacKay*

April 5th.  
1943

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No . 151 met in the municipal office at Rocanville at 8 P.M. present The Reeve and Councillors Campbell, Watson, Chase, Duns more Calder & Petays.

Minutes of last regular meeting read and approved on motion of Councillor Featys Petays.

The Returning Officer declared the result of the poll on Bylaw No. 60 as follows, for the Bylaw 118, against 2 and it was moved by Councillor Chase that Bylaw No. 60 be read a third time and be finally passed " Cd.

Secretary instructed to obtain from the R.M. of Martin a copy of their municipal surgeon contract and to take up with Dr. Keyes the question of attendance on ratepayers whose land is taxed under the bylaw but who do not reside in the areas covered by the bylaw.

Moved by Councillor Watson " The we accept the sum of \$ 75 .00 as partial payment of his 1938 seed grain account and apply the remaining \$ 25.00 of the \$ 100.00 paid out of the proceeds of John Robertsons sale in reducing the taxes on his land " Cd. 2

Mr. Geo. Biden, the district agricultural representative, explained to the council the need of forming a local Win the War Committee pointing out the necessity of each farmer completing a Labour Questionaire, as the information supplied would be used in making applications for postponment of military service and the granting of leave for seeding and Harvest.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That the Council as a whole be the Win the War Committee with the Reeve as Chairman and J.D.Mercer, Secretary.

Moved by Councillor Calder that the Court of Revision be held on Monday May 3rd. at 10 P.M. " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That Councillors Watson and Duns more be the 1943 Tile Committee " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That Councillors Watson and Chase be the 1943 Assessment Committee " Cd.

The estimated receipts and expenditures, being the 1943 budget a copy of which is attached to and forms part of the minutes of this meeting was considered and adopted.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore "That the rate for municipal purposes be 7 1/2 Mills" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore "That we pay the Northfield Rural Telephone Company \$ 300.00 on account of debenture indebtedness" Cd.

Councillor Watson gave a full and instructive of the convention of the Saskatchewan Association of Rural Municipalities held in Regina.

Moved by Councillor Campbell "That we recommend Mrs. Emma Blondeaus application for Maternity Grant" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase "That we extend the time in which unregistered sires must be disposed of, under the Pure Bred Sire Bylaw, until Jan. 1st. 1943" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder "That we pay the Reeve \$ 5.00 per diem and each councillor \$ 4.00 per diem and 10 cents per mile ~~for each day or mile~~ for each day or mile necessarily employed in connection with war services" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays "That we bond Mr. D.F. MacKay in the sum of \$ 6000.00" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder "That we grant \$ 100.00 10.00 to ~~Sheriff's Fund~~ the milk for Britain Fund" Cd.

Secretary instructed to write Mr. R.W. Dickie re taxes on S.W.3-16-30, W1 and tenants notice

Moved by Councillor Campbell "That subject to the consent of the Minister of Municipal Affairs we accept the sum of \$ 75.00 in full payment of all arrears of taxes against the N.W. 1/4 of 14-17-30 W1" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder "That the financial Statement for the month ending March 31st. as read be approved" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore "That the following accounts be paid." Cd

Saskatchewan Association of Rural Municipalities	24.53
J. Cameron	15.00
Rocanville Record	19.25
F. Hebert	8.00
Wapella Post	6.12
Grey Nuns Hospital	107.50
March Petty cash accounts	5.89

Moved by Councillor Chase "That we now adjourn to meet at 10 P.M. on Monday May 3rd."

David T. Wilson  
D.F. MacKay

# Estimated Expenditures- 194.

## Administration

Council Indemnity	460.00 ✓
Secretary Salary	1400.00 ✓
Audit	135.00 ✓
Travel Expense	20.00 ✓
Elections	40.00 ✓
Printing, Postage Etc.	400.00 ✓
Light	20.00 ✓
Rent	300.00 ✓
Interest- Municipal	600.00 ✓
Discount	400.00 ✓
Interest on 1938 Seed loan	600.00 ✓
Sundry	125.00 ✓
	-----
	4500.00

## Protection

Gophers	50.00
Warble Fly	25.00
Weed Inspector	25.00
Pure Bred Sire Area	100.00 ✓
	-----
	200.00 ✓

## Maintenance

Roads & Culverts	3838.00 ✓
Machinery Repair	100.00 ✓
Rent of Right of Way	40.00
Workmens Compensation Board	22.00 ✓
	-----
	4000.00

## Capital

Culverts	500.00
Machinery	500.00
	-----
	1000.00

## Public Health

Health Officer	35.00
Clinics	165.00 ✓
Epidemics	200.00
	-----
	400.00

## Grants, Charities & Medical Services

Grants	200.00 ✓
Anti T.B. Levy	666.00 ✓
Indigent Relief	800.00 ✓
Hospital Grant	500.00 ✓
Medical & Hospital Relief	800.00 ✓
Neglected children	169.00 ✓
Unforeseen	1365.00
	-----
	4500.00

## Summary

Administration	4500.00
Protection	200.00
Maintenance	4000.00
Capital	1000.00
Public Health	400.00
Grants, Charities, Etc.	4500.00
	-----
	14600.00

## Estimated Receipts

Tax Title Property	200.00
Rentals	50.00
Commissions	225.00
Sundry	100.00
added Penalty	2500.00
	-----
	3075.00

Balance by Taxation	11525.00
	-----
	14600.00-

rate for municipal purposes, 7mills

March  
1st.  
1943

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 met in the Municipal Office, Rocanville at 2 P.M. Present the Reeve, Councillors Campbell, Watson, Chase, Dunsmore, Calder and Petays.

Minutes of last regular meeting read and approved on motion of Councillor Dunsmore.

Secretary instructed to order one hind wheel for Russell Reliance Grader( No. R 761)

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore " That relief orders as follow be issued, the Provincial Government assuming 100% ,

John Delorme \$ 8.00, F.Bellehemeure \$8.85, A.Bellehemeure \$ 21.60" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase that the vote on Bylaw No. 60 be held on March 29th. That J.D.Mercer be returning Officer and that the following be the Deputies with their respective polling booths

C.C.Hutchinson at his house; A.Stracey at Carnoustie Hall, W.Polvi at his house.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That we pay \$ 21.00 towards the cost of distributing ration books." Cd.

Moved by The Deputy Reeve" That we take the necessary action to secure the full amount of the 1938 seed grain lien against the S.E.  $\frac{1}{4}$  of 3-17-33, W1 in the event of an auction sale being held of Jno. Robertsons goods and chattels" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Peatys " That a grant of 5.00 be made the Wapella Junr. Calf Club" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase " That we grant \$ 35.00 towards the upkeep of the Rocanville Farmers Ltd. rest room " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That a grant of \$ 100.00 be made to the Rocanville Branch of the Canadian Red Cross Society" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That this council authorise the collection of A.Bernards 1938 seed grain indebtedness by distress of his goods and chattels" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays " That we pay the Workmens Compensation Board its 1943 assessment in full" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore " That the following accounts be paid" Cd.

Rocanville Record	10.37
Department of Telephones	16.00
Dr. Margaret C.Anderson	20.00

February Feb'y Cash Accounts

2.96 ✓

Moved by Councillor Calder" That we now adjourn to meet on  
April 5th. at 2 P.M.

*D. H. MacKay - Sec - Treas.*  
*David L Wilson*  
*- Reeve*

*D. H. MacKay -*  
*Sec - Treas*

Feb. 1st.  
1943

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151

met in the Municipal Office, Rocanville, with the Reeve in the chair.

Present the Reeve, Councillors. Campbell, Watson, Chase, Dunsmore Calder and Petays.

Minutes of Meeting of January 4th. read and approved on motion of Councillor Petays.

Moved by Councillor Petays" That H.C.Watson be the official ~~deleggte~~ delegate to the convention of the Saskatchewan Association of Rural Municipalities" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That C.F.Chase be the alternative delegate" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder" that an advance of \$ 70.00 be made to the Ste. Marthe S.D.No.1546 to cover bank overdraft and that secretaries of school districts be notified that in the future the municipality will not be responsible for bank overdrafts unless previous arrangements have been made" Cd.

Bylaw No. 59 appointing municipal fire guardians read three times by unanimous vote of the council and finally passed, the fire guardians appointed were A.Hebert, J.E.Dumville, C.C.Hutchinson Jos. Cantin, A.Mercer, Jnr. W.Crawford, A.Kangas.

Bylaw No. 60, A bylaw to dispense with the mailing of assessment notices in the year 1943 was read a first and second time

Moved by Councillor Watson" That we accept the sum of \$265.00 in full payment of all arrears accrued against the N.W. $\frac{1}{4}$  of 26 and the S.E. $\frac{1}{4}$  of 35-16-32 or alternately we allow a remission of ~~20%~~ 20% on all arrears accumulated against the N.W.26, S.E.35 & S.W.36-16-33, W1, both offers being subject to the consent of the minister of Municipal Affairs" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That the municipality accept loans from its ratepayers in amounts of \$ 100.00 or more, with interest at 5 % repayable on Nov. 1st. in the current year " Cd

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore" That we accept the sum of \$ 111.71 in full payment of all arrears against the N.W. $\frac{1}{4}$  of 1-18-31, W1" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson" That the N.E.27-16-32, W1 be exempted from taxation under the Volunteer and Reservists Act and that the 1942 taxes imposed thereon be cancelled" Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve, That Councillor Dunsmore be authorised to investigate John Delormes application for relief and supply immediate necessities" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore " That we accept \$ 300.00 in full payment of all arrears until Dec. 31st. 1942 accumulated against the East half of 20-17-30, W1" Cd. ✓

Secretary instructed to write the Live Stock Branch of the Department of Agriculture re making testing cattle for T.B. Councillor Calder authorised to purchase a new wheel for the Russell grader.

Moved by Councillor Calder Petays " That the following accounts be paid "

E.H.Plummer and Son	1.22
Drs. Ferg & Chestnut	25.00
L.Campbell( Long Distance)	3.60
R.C.Merifield	10.00
January Petty Cash Accounts	7.39

Moved by Councillor Calder " That we now adjourn " to meet on Monday March 1st. ✓

David L Wilson

Reeve  
J.H. MacKay  
Sec. Treas.

Jan. 4th.  
1943

The Council of the Rural Municipality of Rocanville, No. 151 met in the Municipal Office, Rocanville with the Reeve in the chair. Present the Reeve, Councillors Campbell, Watson, Chase, Dunsmore, Calder and Petays.

Minutes of meeting of November 30th. read and approved on motion of Councillor Dunsmore.

Secretary reported on action taken with regard to John Elliot that he had been returned by the Provinial Bureau of Public Health to his former place of Residence, Orangeville Ontario.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That D.F. McKay be appointed

Secretary Treasurer at a salary of \$1400.00 per annum " Cd. ✓

Moved by Councillor Watson " That Bylaw No. 57, A bylaw to

Authorise the Council to engage a medical practitioner and surgeon for the Balance of the municipality not already in the municipal doctor area be read a first and second time" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That Bylaw No. 58, A Bylaw to, engage a surgeon for the present municipal doctor area at a salary of \$ <sup>in Council</sup> 250.00 per annum be read a first and second time " Cd. 150"

Moved by Councillor Calder " That L. Campbell be appointed Deputy Reeve for the ensiung year" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase " That the date for regular meetings be the first Monday in each month, unless it falls on a holiday, when the meeting will be held on the second Monday of that month" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Petays" That Indemnity for Reeve and Councillors for attending meetings be \$ 4.00 for Reeve and \$3.00 for Councillors per meeting, with mileage at 10 cents per mile for distance travelled to and from meetings and that mileage for supervision be 7 cents per mile, supervision time to be the same as paid for indemnity " Cd. ✓

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That the Council as a whole be the official Board of Health"

Moved by Councillor Watson" That the Reeve along with the individual Councillor for each division be a committee to carry out the duties imposed on the council under subs. 9 of section 232 of the Rural Municipality Act, being care of the sick and destitute" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore" That the following scale of wages be set for the current year, viz, 30 cents per hour for labour, 35 cents for foreman to include graderman, 45 cents for man with two horse team, 60 cents per hour for man with four horse team, from one to two dollars for engines upto and including 15-30, rate at discretion of each councillor and 2.50 per hour for 35 H.P.Engines " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve" That F.J.Hewgill be appointed auditor for 1943 at a salary of \$ 135.00 per annum" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Watson " That we renew our affiliation with the Saskatchewan Association of Rural Municipalities" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore" That Dr. R.C. Merifield be ~~appointed~~ <sup>appointed</sup> Health Officer for that portion of the Municipality not included in the municipal doctor area at a fee of \$ 35.00 per annum" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Peatys" that the following poundkeepers be appointed

Division 1- J.Welcher; Division 2- J.E.Dumville and W.Goodman;

Division 3- C.C.Hutchinson; Division 4- Jos. Cantin;

Division 5- W.Williamson Jnr; Division 6- W.Polvi" Cd

Moved by Councillor Watson " That bylaw No. 56, authorising prepayment of taxes, with a ~~discount~~ <sup>interest</sup> of 6 % be read three times and finally passed " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Calder " That the Reeve and Secretary be authorised to apply to the Bank of Toronto for a credit of \$ 5000.00 for municipal purposes and \$10000. 00 for school financing and that the Reeve and Secretary be authorised to sign the necessary resolutions " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That we renew our subscription to the Saskatchewan Municipal Record" Cd.

Moved by Councillor Chase "That subject to the consent of the Minister of Municipal Affairs we allow a remission of 20% on Municipal and school taxes and 10% on Public Revenue taxes accrued against the N.W.3 and the S.W.10-16-33, W1 " Cd.

Moved by the Deputy Reeve " That the financial statement for the month ending November 30 th. as read be approved " Cd.

Moved by Councillor Dunsmore " That the following accounts be approved for payment" Cd.

Saskatchewan Association of Rural Municipalities

J. McGurl

\$35.00

Commercial Printers Ltd.

6.94

Imperial Building Supplies Ltd.

47.03

Nap. Hudon

6.25

Dr. R.C. Merifield

25.00

Drs. Perg and Chestnut

69.50

Petty cash expenses for December

2.76

Moved by Councillor Calder " That we now adjourn to meet  
on Monday February 1st. at 2 P.M." Cd.

David L Wilson

- Reeve

A. H. MacKay

- Sec. Treas